TENDER SPECIFICATIONS: LAND TRAVEL SERVICES ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19



ReSPA Activities are Financed by the EU



ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19

29 March 2019

Call for tenders

Tender specifications

Land travel services





Contents

ANNEX I – TENDER SPECIFICATIONS	4
1. About the Regional School of Public Administration (ReSPA)	4
2. Presentation of the tender	4
3. Confidentiality and protection of personal data	6
4. Participation in the tendering procedure	6
4.1. Eligibility	6
4.2. Application	6
4.3. Subcontracting	7
5. Contractual terms and guarantees	7
6. Subject of the contract	7
6.1. Purpose and scope of the contract	7
6.1.1. Detailed requirements	8
6.2. Ad hoc information requests/service updates	9
6.3. Flexibility of working hours	0
6.4. Communication of interest to ReSPA and travellers	0
6.5. Confidentiality of information1	1
6.6. Statistics	1
6.7. Contractor staff	1
6.8. Ordering process	1
6.9. Quality of service	3
6.10. Purchase order workflow1	3
6.11. Invoicing process	4
6.12. Transparency of third -party supplier's costs – random audits	4
7. Type of the contract1	5
8. Award procedure and Criteria1	6
8.1. Exclusion criteria	7
8.1.1. Exclusion from participation and award in the procurement procedure1	7

TENDER SPECIFICATIONS: LAND TRAVEL SERVICES ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19





8.1.2. Evidence to be provided by the tenderers	17
8.2. Selection criteria	17
8.2.1. Legal capacity	18
8.2.2. Economic and financial capacity	18
8.2.3. Technical and professional capacity	19
8.3. Award criteria	20
8.3.1. Technical merit	20
8.3.2. Number of applications	21
8.3.3. Provisional commencement date of the contract	21
9 Annexes	21





ANNEX I – TENDER SPECIFICATIONS

Title: Provision of land travel services for the Regional School of Public Administration Reference: Call for tenders ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19 Closing date: 07.05.2019

1. About the Regional School of Public Administration (ReSPA)

ReSPA is an international organization set-up as a joint initiative of European Union and the Western Balkan countries working towards fostering and strengthening the regional cooperation in public administration, human resource management and civil service reform among its Member States. It seeks to offer high quality, innovative and creative training events, networking activities, capacity building and consulting services to ensure that the shared values of respect, tolerance, collaboration and integration are reaffirmed and implemented throughout the public administrations in the region. It is located in Danilovgrad, Montenegro. The foregoing is a summary of the objectives of ReSPA:

- a) To improve regional cooperation in the field of public administration reform;
- b) To support <u>development</u> of human resources management in line with the European Administrative Space;
- c) To promote regional professional networks both within the region and beyond;
- d) To contribute to the strengthening of administrative capacities of ReSPA Member States as required by the European integration process.

Further information about the work of the ReSPA can be found on its website: <u>http://www.respaweb.eu</u>

2. Presentation of the tender

Tenders shall be submitted in accordance with the double envelope system. The outer envelope or parcel should be sealed with adhesive tape and signed across the seal and carry the following information:

- The call for tenders reference No "ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19"
- The contract title "Provision of land travel services for the Regional School of Public Administration"
- The name of the tenderer
- The indication "Tender Not to be opened by the internal mail services"





- The address for submission of tender (as specified in the letter of invitation to tender)
- The date of submission shall be legible on the outer envelope or parcel

The outer envelope or parcel must contain three inner envelopes, i.e. Envelopes No 1, 2 and 3, corresponding to the following three sections: administrative section, technical offer and financial offer.

- (a) Envelope No 1 Administrative section shall include the following:
 - The Tender submission form drawn up in accordance with the template in Annex 1
 - The declaration(s) on exclusion criteria as required under section 8.1.2 drawn up in accordance with the template in Annex 2
 - The legal entity form(s) as required under section 8.2.1 drawn up in accordance with the template in Annex 3 accompanied by the required supporting documents
 - The financial identification form drawn up in accordance with the template in Annex 4
 - The evidence and documentation demonstrating the fulfilment of the selection criteria as required under sections 8.2.2 (economic and financial capacity) and 8.2.3 (technical and professional capacity)
- (b) Envelope No 2 Technical offer shall include the following:

The technical offer addressing the elements described in sections 6 and providing all information requested under section 8.3

(c) Envelope No 3 – Financial offer shall include the following:

The financial offer drawn up in accordance with the requirements set in sections 6.13 and with the template in Annex 5.

Tenders shall be drafted in **English** (supporting evidence does not need to be translated) and submitted **in triplicate** (one **signed original and two copies**).

It is important that tenders are presented in the correct format and include all documents necessary to enable the evaluation committee to assess them. Failure to respect the requirements above will constitute a formal error and may result in the rejection of the tender.

Tenderers shall carefully follow the instructions in points 2, 3, 4 and 6 of the letter of invitation to tender to ensure their tender is admissible. Late delivery will lead to the non-admissibility of the





tender and its rejection from the procedure for awarding a contract following this call for tenders. Tenders sent by e-mail or by fax will also be non-admissible and discarded. Envelopes found opened at the opening session will also lead to non-admissibility of the tender. Consequently, tenderers must ensure that their tender is wrapped in such a way as to prevent any accidental opening during its mailing.

3. Confidentiality and protection of personal data

For the processing of this tendering procedure, the ReSPA observes the rules set in Regulation (EC) No 45/2001 on the protection of individuals with regard to the processing of personal data by Community institutions and bodies and on the free movement of such data¹.

4. Participation in the tendering procedure

4.1. Eligibility

As per Practical Guide and its annexes.

4.2. Application

All eligible legal persons (as per above) or groupings of such persons (consortia) may apply. A consortium may be a permanent, legally established grouping or a grouping, which has been constituted informally for a specific tender procedure. If awarded the contract, the members of the consortium (i.e. the coordinator and all other partners) will have an equal standing towards the ReSPA in executing the framework service contract and they will be jointly and severally liable to the ReSPA.

The participation of an ineligible legal person will result in the automatic exclusion of that person. In particular, if that ineligible person belongs to a consortium, the whole consortium will be excluded.

The ReSPA will not request consortia to have a given legal form in order to be allowed to submit a tender, but reserves the right to require a consortium to adopt a given legal form before the contract is signed if this change is necessary for the proper performance of the contract. This can take the form of an entity with or without legal personality but offering sufficient protection to the ReSPA's contractual interests (depending on the country concerned, this may be for instance, incorporation or partnership or a temporary association). Consortia must identify one of their members as leader (coordinator) who will interface with the ReSPA.

¹ OJ EU L 8/1 of 12.1.2001





Each member of a consortium must fulfil the conditions for participation mentioned in this section as well as in section 4.1 above and provide the required evidence for the exclusion and selection criteria (see sections 8.1 and 8.2 of these Tender Specifications). Concerning the selection criteria 'technical and professional capacity', the evidence provided by each member of the consortium will be checked to ensure that the consortium as a whole fulfils the criteria. Therefore, each member of a consortium shall specify his role, qualifications and experience.

The participation of an ineligible person will result in the automatic exclusion of that person. In particular, if that ineligible person belongs to a consortium, the whole consortium will be excluded.

4.3. Subcontracting

Subcontracting is not allowed.

5. Contractual terms and guarantees

In drawing up their bid, tenderers should bear in mind the provisions of the standard framework service contract and standard order form particularly those on payments, performance of the contract, confidentiality, and checks and audits. Any limitation, amendment or denial of the terms of the contract will lead to the automatic exclusion from the procurement procedure.

No financial guarantee is required.

6. Subject of the contract

6.1. Purpose and scope of the contract

The contract aims to provide travel agency services to the ReSPA in regard to the Land travel and/or other means of transportation from/to the Region (i.e. ReSPA Members and Kosovo*, related to ReSPA needs – meetings, conferences, seminars, working group meetings and other events organized in the Western Balkan Region.

ReSPS requires an experienced companies) (in the following text named as a contractors) to make travel arrangements as required, for ReSPA's needs (in the following text named as ReSPA **traveller(s)**) travelling within the Western Balkan Region ReSPA's offices are established in Danilovgrad, Montenegro, while its travellers are traveling both to and from ReSPA, and to and from other departures and destinations in the Western Balkan.

The travellers of ReSPA are <u>public administration officials from ReSPA member countries</u>, <u>ReSPA International and Technical Staff Members</u>, <u>Experts</u>, <u>Senior officials from EU and the</u> <u>region</u>, <u>civil society representatives and other distinguished guests</u>. In term of an event to which land travel service is to be required, in majority of cases the departure point for each traveller differs while the arrival point is mutual for all. The Contractor shall organise in that matter as many different arrangements as the travellers are nominated for the certain event.





ReSPA uses the term "Activity and/or Activity Number" (hereinafter "Activity" to describe an authorized trip of traveller(s). Each activity has a specific activity reference number provided by the ReSPA.

Travel arrangements will be made on the basis of the most convenient trip (shortest schedule possible in terms of the time schedule from departure to destination and return back) at the best possible price to ReSPA, according to the provisions mentioned below.

It is the Contractor's task to advise the traveller on the most suitable travel option for the Activity and where applicable, to explain the appropriate options to the traveller. Once the names of travellers of ReSPA's event/activity are sent by ReSPA and received by the Contractor the communication shall remain among the traveller and the Contractor.

6.1.1. Detailed requirements

ReSPA will share its plan of activities expected to be organized in the following months, with an indicative projection of possible needs for land transfer services. ReSPA will update this information regularly and will share it with the shortlisted suppliers.

ReSPA will ask for particular land travel services, along with the anticipated number of travelers, for which response (confirmation) should be provided by e-mail within one (1) working day from the original inquiry at which time ReSPA traveller should receive routing options in exceptional cases ReSPA traveller may ask Contractor to provide a response within a shorter period of time, therefore the Contractor shall be able to respond within a period of time as short as 1 hour. After obtaining a confirmation of requested services, ReSPA will share the contact details of the travelers.

Travel by Agency car

Departure	Destinations
Belgrade	Sarajevo, Skopje, Pristina, Banja Luka, Ljubljana, Bucharest, Plitvice
Sarajevo	Tirana, Ohrid, Pristina, Banja Luka, Danilovgrad, Budva, Mostar, Plitvice
Skopje	Belgrade, Sarajevo, Tirana, Ohrid, Pristina, Danilovgrad, Budva
Tirana	Sarajevo, Skopje, Ohrid, Pristina, Danilovgrad, Budva
Ohrid	Skopje, Podgorica, Tirana, Pristina
Pristina	Sarajevo, Skopje, Ohrid, Tirana, Danilovgrad, Budva
Banja Luka	Sarajevo, Belgrade, Danilovgrad, Zagreb
Podgorica	Sarajevo, Skopje, Ohrid, Tirana, Danilovgrad, Pristina, Budva, Kolasin
Mostar	Sarajevo, Belgrade, Danilovgrad, Zagreb, Plitvice

The below table shows an indicative destination which will be used for ReSPA activities:





Cancellations

The general cancellation policy must be clearly outlined at the technical offer. In the case of cancellation on short notice, the best alternative option to facilitate the mission in question should be provided. In addition, the Contractor will endeavour to minimise any penalties incurred by ReSPA. Penalties regarding any additional charges attributed to a fault of the Contractor will, however not be paid by ReSPA. The Contractor has a duty to keep ReSPA informed at all times on the status and changes of a mission including information on such aspects as schedules, prices, extra charges applicable etc. Other services may additionally be provided upon request by ReSPA.

Other requirements

Along the Administrative requirements stipulated in the tender dossier, all bidders must also provide the following documents:

- proof of paid taxes issued by the tax authorities, not older than 6 months
- proof of clear court record referring to the past 5 years
- proof of solvency
- Financial and Legal identification forms included in the tender documentation
- proof that the bidder is not in process of liquidation or closure, issued by relevant institution
- statement claiming that bidder, including drivers and employees were not involved nor participated in any kind of fraud, major crime, money laundering, national or cross border proliferation of illegal materials/substances.

<u>Activities:</u> In general, the model activity of ReSPA is one/two/ three-day event with one/two/three overnights per traveller. The usual number of participants is 18 or 24 when in ReSPA premises or in the ReSPA region and 24 or more when in EU Member State. However, ReSPA Conferences organized at ReSPA and in the region, may encompass 70-120 participants, or 10-20 participants from each ReSPA Member.

The activity may vary per duration or number of participants, no matter of the place where event shall take place.

6.2. Ad hoc information requests/service updates

The Contractor shall provide ReSPA at the end of the month a quantitative Report on the services provided in the previous month, along with a detailed list of travellers transported to the particular event.





The shortlisted service providers may be requested to attend a small number of coordination meetings at the premises of ReSPA (1 to 2 meetings at the start of services and 1 to 2 per year thereafter). These meetings will not be reimbursed by ReSPA. Primarily, meetings shall be organised with the use of available technology (e.g. tele/video conference facilities), if necessary, in which case no reimbursement of fees (conference fees, equipment cost, telecommunication expenses) will occur.

6.3. Flexibility of working hours

Contractors shall be in a position to provide the aforementioned services during normal working hours (Monday to Friday 8.00 – 18.00, CET +1) except public holidays which shall be communicated by ReSPA at the beginning of the year and/or start of the contract.

During working hours, Contractors staff must be available by telephone, by e-mail or via voice call over internet solution of zero cost per call. Contractors will provide a dedicated team (minimum 1 employee) to serve ReSPA and also a direct telephone line and e-mail address to be used for communication with ReSPA and its staff.

Contractors shall guarantee enough resources to support via telephone and e-mail the volume of activities during normal working hours (Monday to Friday 8.00 – 18.00, CET +1) for each ReSPA working day. Therefore, replacement of staff for any reason (sickness, holiday, training etc.) must be foreseen by the Contractors.

Flexibility during weekends and holidays is required. In particular, Contractors has to make available and warrant a hotline service for urgent queries arising outside normal working hours and stretching at least two (2) hours before office hours and three (3) hours after (a telephone number must also be provided).

The ability of Contractors to provide in addition to the above mentioned an emergency hotline service on a 24/07 basis for urgent queries arising outside the normal working hours will be considered advantageous in the evaluation of tenders.

Contractors, in any case, shall provide resources for full support of the travellers in regard and during the trips organised under this Contract once they are taking place.

6.4. Communication of interest to ReSPA and travellers

The Contractor will inform travellers and ReSPA immediately of changes in the scheduled transfers and any significant circumstances that can incur changes in the scheduled transfers,





e.g. planned strikes, or any new carriers operating which might be of interest of the travellers and ReSPA, as well as any particular discount/offers proposed by carriers.

6.5. Confidentiality of information

The Contractor must ensure that personal data to which they may get access during the implementation of the contract are protected.

Valid for all missions, services and provisions: ReSPA remains the owner of data collected, including any and all personal data related to a mission. Data is treated by the contractor as confidential and personal data is treated in line with the requirements of Directive 95/46/EC as transposed to the respective Member State of ReSPA.

6.6. Statistics

The Contractor will be requested to provide detailed statistics at the end of each six months to reflect the work carried out for ReSPA. Such statistics may include, costs covered for use of a car etc., by month and by destination and expenditure under the contract by month etc.

6.7. Contractor staff

High level of professionalism and "client-orientation" is expected by the staff of the Contractor. The staff designated as contact persons with ReSPA shall have a good working knowledge of English, while some knowledge of other EU languages would be appreciated. A good knowledge of the geographical areas in which ReSPA is mainly operating (Members of ReSPA countries) is also considered as an advantage. ReSPA expects that dedicated staff will be made available to the ReSPA account by the Contractor, as appropriate.

The Contractor shall ensure that any member of its staff dealing with ReSPA travels under this contract has the necessary and sufficient knowledge and training to render the services at the required level.

6.8. Ordering process

The ordering process and delivery of services will be ensured through the exchange of emails (request for service) between ReSPA travelers and the Contractor throughout the validity of the Contract.





The Contractor must provide the required services in line with the offered price related to the particular destination pair - submitted in the financial offer, compliant with the list of departures and destinations provided.

The requests for services will be sent to the Contractor by ReSPA (or else as will be notified in advance) in form of a list of participants with contact details and departure information. ReSPA will send the request for services by mail, 14 days before the event. In a limited number of cases, the request for services may be sent with some delay (day or two).

The request for services, sent from ReSPA to Contractor, will indicate the travelling arrangements requested as follows:

- a) Travel by agency car
- b) Information on the location of the event venue; As for events organised at ReSPA all participants will be accommodated at ReSPA Campus in Danilovgrad, Montenegro

The Contractor shall reply to the request for services and will send all offers pertaining to one request in a single email, within 1-day hours after the request is submitted by ReSPA by mail.

In cases when the contractor is not capable to comply with this request, ReSPA may request agency car from other available providers (agencies, Taxi Company). ReSPA reserves the right, in cases when participants demand change of travel model or when the event is cancelled/postponed to cancel the whole assignment and to carry out the activity with another provider (flight arrangement or use of a private car, upon request from travelers).

In line with the previous ReSPA will issue to the Contractor a Purchase order for selected services, signed by a ReSPA Manager and submit it to the contractor within 24h after obtaining the offer by mail.

The contractor, in line with the obtained Purchase Order, should initiate communication with travelers. After obtaining confirmation from the travelers, the contractor should inform ReSPA that contact with travellers is established and may further organise the land transfer services, in line with the approved Purchase Order.

In case of delay, and if travellers are not reachable, the contractor should communicate the encountered situation to the ReSPA contact person for the particular event by e-mail. In this regard, e-mail clarification will be obtained from RESPA regarding the further steps to be undertaken.

In every communication, the Activity reference number is mandatory to be indicated in the email subject filed.

After completing the whole list of requirements as per approved Purchase Order, Contractor should send a summary overview of services provided, with all related data. Listed financial liabilities stipulated on the signed Purchase order must not be breached in any circumstances. Copy of signed purchase order must be enclosed to the Invoice for services.





6.9. Quality of service

The Contractor is obliged to provide efficient, reliable and timely transport services, as follows:

- a) Contractor should have at disposal at least 3 luxury vehicles and at least 1 luxury van, bearing the following minimal amenities:
 - 2 zone air-condition
 - 6 airbags
 - Length of vehicle min. 4.750 mm
- b) Vehicles should not be older than 5 years, class sedan or limo, regular maintenance
- c) Van/s, 8 seats, not older than 7 years, regular maintained
- d) Min 5 references issued in the past 12 months of delivered land transfer services for travellers coming from international organizations, EU Delegation, OSCE, UN, embassies, Ministries, along wht contact persons
- e) All vehicles must have appropriate winter and summer period tires, installed in line with the period of the year
- f) Smoking should not be allowed at all times,
- g) Qualified professional drivers with all relevant documents to perform the duties of a driver,
- h) Driver/s must have basic knowledge of English language
- i) Proper dress code and driving with due care and courtesy towards the passenger,
- j) Take the most time-efficient route, bearing in mind likely traffic problems and known diversions, and explain any diversion from the most direct route, preference of highways
- k) In case of no show of participants at the airport, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to inform the contact person at ReSPA for the no-show
- I) Full insurance of vehicles, registered for public service transport
- m) Vehicle insurance must encompass insurance of all passengers riding along with the driver. Insurance must encompass premium for passenger injuries and death.

6.10. Purchase order workflow

Each time ReSPA would like to request land travel services, it will send a purchase order form to the Contractor including the short description of the land travel services to be ordered (Annex 7).

The Contractor should return the purchase order form duly signed and dated within the deadline specified in the request.





6.11. Invoicing process

The contractor shall issue monthly invoices for the services rendered, listed above, in a period of a calendar month. The monthly invoice must be accompanied by a consolidated monthly report detailing all transactions that took place in the referred month. The invoice will be considered valid only if the monthly report provides the following required information:

- a) Description of transaction/service rendered: analytical information is required, e.g. name of the person on a mission, travel itinerary, dates and times of travel, cost.
- b) Activity Reference Number, for each transaction listed (Note: this number is necessary for the identification of the relevant authorized Purchase Order and the validation of the invoiced cost)
- c) Purchase order

ReSPA shall approve or reject the monthly report and proceed to the payment of the invoice within (30) thirty days from receipt of the report and the invoice.

ReSPA is exempted from all taxes and duties, including Value Added Tax (VAT). The Contractor should demand payment directly by the traveller for all additional costs relating to any detours or parts of the journey made for private reasons. ReSPA takes no responsibility and will accept no request for payment of the cost of such travelling arrangements for private reasons. Private arrangements are not subject to the conditions of the contract.

The flexibility of the Contractor to invoice the services only after the provision of the services will be required during the evaluation of the offers. The possibility of invoicing services only after their provision must be clearly indicated in the offer – free of VAT. The invoice must be followed by signed Purchase Order (PO) from responsible ReSPA Manager and with a detailed specification (name and surname, dates, destinations, price). The PO must contain the number of the event and the name of the Activity.

6.12. Transparency of third -party supplier's costs – random audits

The ReSPA reserves the right at any time to request a copy of the financial arrangement or invoice between the third-party provider of services and the contractor.

Following such a request by ReSPA, if it can be ascertained that an extra cost has been added by the contractor to the third-party provider's quoted cost, then ReSPA reserves the right to reduce the amount of the invoice for that mission by the total amount of the extra cost identified for each particular service provided by the third party.





ReSPA also reserves the right to deal with other travel agencies, carriers, or other bodies for all services, as an alternative to the contract concluded with the successful Contractor, in particular where a lower price can be obtained from another supplier.

6.13. Content of the technical and financial offer

- a) The Tenderer shall enclose with the Technical Offer all documents and information that will enable its offer to be assessed in terms of quality and of compliance with the Terms of Reference.
- b) The Technical Offer shall include as a minimum the following information and must be undersigned for acceptance:
 - A brief description of the Tenderer's company and the types of services that the company offers;
 - A description of the methodology in providing land travel serices;
 - A Description of the team proposed by the tenderer to manage and oversee the tender, including the roles of the contact person and the quality manager, and any other persons who will ensure the provision of the highest possible quality of service for this tender. In addition to indicate the name and contact details of the person responsible for this contract tender.

c) The Tenderer is also required to include an electronic copy of its 'Technical Offer' and

The Financial offer must be drawn up using the Financial Offer form (see Annex – Financial Offer). In order to be valid, it must be duly filled in, dated, stamped, and signed by the authorized person.

Please take special care to enter data in all boxes as described. Failure to provide a fully completed form may result in your offer being declared invalid and not being further evaluated.

Contractor should provide individual round trip price for each destination pair, compliant with the financial offer template.

Electronic copies may be submitted on a physical medium (e.g. CD/DVD, USB stick) only. Please do not provide a link to a remote (e.g. file server-based or cloud-based etc.) service as this cannot be accepted.

7. Type of the contract

The successful tenderer will be offered a framework service contract which will be implemented through purchase order forms which alone shall bind the ReSPA. The purchase order forms will





detail the services and volumes to be provided and the resources to be allocated depending on the ReSPA's needs. The Contracting Authority may, at its own discretion, extend the project in duration and/or scope subject to the availability of funding. Any extension of the contract would be subject to satisfactory performance by the Contractor. Present duration of the framework contract is for 24 months pending conclusion of the new EC Grant Contract.

7.1 What is a framework contract?

A framework contract is a legal agreement between two parties - in this case the ReSPA and the contractor. It acts as the basis for possible future purchase of services by the ReSPA. The framework contract contains, inter alia, a description of the scope of services that can be requested by ReSPA.

The framework contract will be signed for an initial one-year period and will be automatically renewed for the period of 12 months, unless one of the parties receives formal notification to the contrary at least three months before the end of the ongoing duration. Renewal does not change or postpone any existing obligations.

The contract will be concluded in English and all follow-up communication related to the contract and its implementation will also be done in English.

The framework contract has no fixed value. It does however have an estimated maximum total value. Signature of the framework contract imposes no obligation on ReSPA to order services. Only the implementation of the framework contract through purchase orders or specific contracts is binding for the ReSPA.

Execution of the framework contract will be performed through purchase order forms (draft template provided as the Annex 7), which will contain details of deliverables and timelines for particular services. The procedure for concluding purchase orders is described in section 6.10.

8. Award procedure and Criteria

The award procedure will consist in three successive stages; only tenders meeting the requirements of one stage will be examined in the next stage. The procedure foresees:

- 1. to check, in the first stage, whether tenderers can take part in the tendering procedure (exclusion criteria and legal capacity);
- to check, in the second stage, the economic and financial capacity and the technical and professional capacity of each tenderer who has passed the eligibility stage (selection criteria);





3. to assess, in the third and last stage, each tender which has passed the eligibility and selection stages in terms of their technical merit first and then their financial value (award criteria).

8.1. Exclusion criteria

8.1.1. Exclusion from participation and award in the procurement procedure

As part of the tender, tenderers must submit a signed declaration, included in the tender form, to the effect that they are not in any of the exclusion situations listed in section 2.3.3. of the Practical Guide².

8.1.2. Evidence to be provided by the tenderers

When submitting their bids, each tenderer (including any member of a consortium) must provide a declaration on their honour in accordance with the form attached as Annex 2, duly signed and dated, stating that they are not in any of the situations mentioned under section 8.1.1 above. The tenderer to whom the contract is to be awarded will be required, prior to the signature of the contract, to provide the evidence specified in the penultimate paragraph of the declaration of honour mentioned above (see Annex 2).

The ReSPA may waive the obligation of the tenderer to whom the contract is to be awarded to submit the documentary evidence referred to above if such evidence has already been submitted to the ReSPA for the purpose of another procurement procedure and provided that the issuing date of the documents does not exceed one year and that they are still valid. In such a case, the successful tenderer shall declare on its honour that the documentary evidence has already been provided in a previous procurement procedure and confirm that no changes in its situation have occurred.

8.2. Selection criteria

Tenderers should show their degree of economic and financial capacity, and technical and professional capacity to provide the requested services by providing information on the criteria described below. If several service providers are involved in the tender, the economic and financial capacity, and the technical and professional capacity will be assessed in relation to the combined capacities of the service providers, as a whole, to the extent that service providers put their resources at the disposal of the tenderer for performance of the contract.

The ReSPA reserves the right to reject a tenderer where it is established that he has conflicting professional interest which may negatively affect the performance of the contract.

² DEVCO Prag to financial and contractual procedures (Version 2016.0 - 15 January 2016), available from the following Internet address: <u>http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/prag</u>





8.2.1. Legal capacity

> Requirement

Any tenderer is required to prove that he is authorised to perform the contract under the national law.

> Evidence to be provided by the tenderers:

Each tenderer (including any member of a consortium) is required to submit a legal entity form (see Annex 3) duly filled out and signed, accompanied by a copy of inscription in a trade register and/or a copy of inscription in a VAT register, or a sworn declaration or certificate, membership of a specific organisation, or express authorisation, where applicable.

8.2.2. Economic and financial capacity

Tenderers must provide sufficient information to satisfy the ReSPA of their financial standing and that they have the necessary resources and financial means to carry out the work which is the subject of the contract.

- ➢ <u>Requirements:</u>
 - Tenderers must be in a stable financial position and have the economic and financial capacity to perform the contract;
 - The tenderer's annual turnover for each of the last three financial years must be no less than EUR 50,000 (fifty thousand euros).
- > Evidence to be provided by the tenderers:

At least one of the document or information listed below must be presented as evidence of compliance with the requirements for the economic and financial capacity:

- Copy of the profit and loss account and balance sheet for the last three years for which accounts have been closed;
- Failing that, appropriate statements from banks or evidence of professional risk indemnity insurance.

If the tenderer relies on the capacities of other entities (regardless of the legal nature of the links which it has with them), it shall provide a written undertaking on the part of those entities confirming that they will place the resources necessary for performance of the contract at its





disposal for the period of the contract. In such case, the ReSPA may require that the successful tenderer and such entities are jointly liable for the execution of the contract.

If, for some exceptional reason, which the ReSPA considers justified, a tenderer is unable to provide at least one of the references requested above, he may prove his economic and financial capacity by any other means which the ReSPA considers appropriate.

8.2.3. Technical and professional capacity

➢ <u>Requirements</u>

Tenderers are required to fulfil **all** the following requirements:

- Suitability of the organisation and staffing structure available for the services covered by the contract;
- Tenderers must have at least 3 years of relevant experience during the last 3 years (2016, 2017 and 2018) in provision of comparable services to the ones described in Technical Specifications to similar clients.
- Evidence to be provided by the tenderers

The following documents or information shall be presented as evidence of compliance with the technical and professional capacity criteria:

Suitability of the organisation and staffing structure

- A brief description of the Tenderer's company and the types of services that the company offers;
- A description of the methodology in providing land travel serices;
- A Description of the team proposed by the tenderer to manage and oversee the tender, including the roles of the contact person and the quality manager, and any other persons who will ensure the provision of the highest possible quality of service for this tender. In addition to indicate the name and contact details of the person responsible for this contract tender.

Past similar contracts

 A list and a description of the contracts awarded to the tenderer in the past three years (2016, 2017, and 2018) relevant to the services required under this call for tenders (land travel services), indicating the dates, value, name and address of the), brief description of the services undertaken including name and role of consortium members. The ReSPA may elect to contact any of the aforementioned companies for a reference. Your permission to do so will be assumed unless you state any objections





8.3. Award criteria

Framework contract will be awarded to the all bidders who have fulfilled the administrative and technical requirements of the TOR and have provided financial offer encompassing at least one departure city. The following aspects will be considered in the evaluation of the technical offers against the award criterion on quality of services and support:

No.	Q	ualitative Award Criteria	Points
i)	Quality and appropriateness of technical offer	Quality of the offer an accuracy of the description to provide the requested services, quality of service, provided vehicles and drivers	30
ii)	Prior experience in the services requested; internal organisation of the tenderer	Team size and composition and balance of skill mix of the proposed team: profiles, team roles and responsibilities of all team members, including resource	20
iii)	Conformance with services requested	Conformance of the offered services with the requirements – ordering process, invoicing process, communication with RESPA travelers, the flexibility of working hours and ad hock orders	20
iv)	More than 5 references from international organizations, EU, OECD, UN, Embassies, recognized companies etc.	Evaluation will be made based on the level of recognition of organisations/insitutions of provided references, while the amount of provided references above the minimum 5, will be considered as secondary criteria	30
	TOTAL		100

Minimum attainment per criterion

Offers scoring less than 50% for any criterion will be deemed to be of insufficient quality and eliminated from further consideration.

Minimum attainment overall

Offers scoring less than 75% after the evaluation process will be considered to be of insufficient quality and eliminated from the following phase.

8.3.1. Technical merit

Tenders will be evaluated against the quality criteria and in accordance with the weightings described in the table below which can produce a potential maximum score of 100 points. For that purpose, tenderers are required to:





- provide a technical offer elaborating on the services and mandatory requirements described in section 6; and
- provide a response to all of the quality criteria referred to table above in order to score as many points as possible

The mere repetition of the ReSPA's requirements as set out in these Tender Specifications without going into details or without giving any added value will result in a low score. If essential elements of these Tender Specifications are not expressly addressed in the tender, the ReSPA may decide to give a zero mark for the relevant quality criteria.

The tenderer must confirm that it meets mandatory minimum technical requirements set out in section 8 and provide a completed declaration which can be found in Annex 6.

8.3.2. Number of applications

No more than one application can be submitted whatever the form of participation (as an individual legal entity or as leader or member of a consortium submitting an application). In the event that a tenderer submits more than one application, all applications in which that person has participated will be excluded.

8.3.3. Provisional commencement date of the contract

May/June 2019

All written communications for this tender procedure and contract must be in English. Documents confirming the administrative requirements may be in local languages. However, in case of appointment English translation should be provided for contracting purposes.

8.3.4. Number of Lots

One Lot

8.3.5. Eligibility

As per Practical Guide and its annexes





8.3.6. Candidature

All persons or groupings³ of such persons (consortia) may apply.

A consortium may be a permanent, legally-established grouping or a grouping which has been constituted informally for a specific tender procedure. All members of a consortium (i.e., the leader and all other members) are jointly and severally liable to the Contracting Authority.

The participation of an ineligible^⁴ person will result in the automatic exclusion of that person. In particular, if that ineligible person belongs to a consortium, the whole consortium will be excluded.

8.3.7. Sub-contracting

Sub-contracting is not allowed

8.3.8. Legal basis

Adopted ReSPA Budget and EC Council Regulation No 1085/2006 of 17 July 2006 establishing an Instrument for Pre- Accession Assistance (IPA).

8.3.9. Additional information

Certain documents and forms included in the tender dossier are developed for the needs of ReSPA as international organisation entitled to used them in accordance with the **Practical Guide and its annexes**.

³ Participation is open to all legal persons [participating either individually or in a grouping (consortium) of tenderers] which are established in a Member State of the European Union or in a country or territory of the regions covered and/or authorized by the specific instruments applicable to the programme under which the contract is financed.
⁴ Per PRAG





9 Annexes

- Annex 1: Tender submission form
- Annex 2: Declaration on exclusion criteria
- Annex 3: Legal entity form
- Annex 4: Financial identification form
- Annex 5: Price quotation
- Annex 6: Minimum technical requirements declaration
- Annex 7: Draft Order Form
- Annex 8: Draft framework service contract
- Annex 9: Entities invited





ANNEX 1 to the Tender Specifications – Tender Submission form¹

1. SUBMITTED BY (i.e. the identity of the tenderer)

	Name of the tenderer	Statutory registration number ²	Nationality ³
Coordinator ⁴			
Member			
Etc			

Name of the representative authorised to sign	
(Title, first name, surname and function)	

2. CONTACT PERSON for this call for tenders (to act as focal point for all communications which may take place between the ReSPA and the tenderer)

Name	
Organisation (<i>department, unit,</i> <i>etc…</i>)	
Address	
Telephone / Fax	
E-mail	

¹ One signed original and two copies of this tender submission form must be supplied.

² Unless the tenderer is a body governed by public law.

³ Please indicate the country in which you have your registered office, headquarters or residence.

⁴ Add/delete additional rows for consortium members as appropriate. If the tender is submitted by a single tenderer, the name of the tenderer shall be entered as "Coordinator" and the other rows shall be deleted.

3. STATEMENT

We, the undersigned, being the authorised signatory of the above tenderer (including all consortium members in the case of a joint tender), hereby declare that we have examined and accept without restriction the entire contents of the tender specifications for the tender procedure referred to above, and submit the attached tender which consists of the following documents:

ENVELOPE No 1 – Administrative section	
The present Annex 1 to the tender specifications duly filled out, dated and signed	
The Declaration(s) ⁵ on exclusion criteria (using the standard template in Annex 2) as required under section 8.1.2 of the tender specifications, duly filled out, dated and signed	
The Legal entity form(s) (using the standard template in Annex 3) duly filled out, dated and signed, accompanied by the requested supporting documents specified in section 8.2.1 of the Tender Specifications	
The Financial identification form (using the standard template in Annex 4) duly filled out, dated and signed, accompanied by the requested supporting documents	
Documentation demonstrating fulfilment of the selection criteria on economic and financial capacity (section 8.2.2 of the tender specifications)	
Documentation demonstrating fulfilment of the selection criteria on technical and professional capacity (section 8.2.3 of the tender specifications)	

ENVELOPE No 2 – Technical offer

The technical offer addressing the elements described in sections 6 and 8, including Annex 6 to the Tender Specifications and providing all information requested under section 8.

ENVELOPE No 3 – Financial Offer

The financial offer drawn up in accordance with the requirements set in sections 6.13, and with the template in Annex 5.

Tenders shall be drafted in English (supporting evidence does not need be translated)

Submitted in triplicate:	One signed original	
	Two copies	
	No later than 07.05.2019 ⁶	

⁵ Declarations on exclusion criteria and supporting documents on selection criteria must be supplied by each member of a consortium of firms submitting a joint tender.

⁶ At 16:00 (CET) in case of hand delivery or 23:59 (CET) in case of delivery by post or express courier.

We are fully aware that, in the case of a consortium, the composition of the consortium may not be modified in the course of the tender procedure except with the prior written authorisation of the contracting authorities. We are also aware that the consortium members would have joint and several liability towards the contracting authorities concentring the participation in both the above tendering procedeure and any contract awarded as a result of it⁷.

This tender is subject to acceptance within the validity period specified in point 7 of the letter of invitation to tender.

Signed on behalf of the tenderer

Name	
Date	
Signature	

⁷ Delete if not applicable

Annex 2: Declaration on honour on exclusion criteria and selection criteria

The undersigned [*insert name of the signatory of this form*], representing:

(only for natural persons) himself or herself	(only for legal persons) the following legal person:
ID or passport number:	Full official name: Official legal form:
('the person')	Statutory registration number: Full official address: VAT registration number:
	('the person')

I – SITUATION OF EXCLUSION CONCERNING THE PERSON

(1) declares that the above-mentioned person is in one of the following situations:	YES	NO
(a) it is bankrupt, subject to insolvency or winding up procedures, its assets are being administered by a liquidator or by a court, it is in an arrangement with creditors, its business activities are suspended or it is in any analogous situation arising from a similar procedure provided for under national legislation or regulations;		
(b) it has been established by a final judgement or a final administrative decision that the person is in breach of its obligations relating to the payment of taxes or social security contributions in accordance with the law of the country in which it is established, with those of the country in which the contracting authority is located or those of the country of the performance of the contract;		
(c) it has been established by a final judgement or a final administrative decision that the person is guilty of grave professional misconduct by having violated applicable laws or regulations or ethical standards of the profession to which the person belongs, or by having engaged in any wrongful conduct which has an impact on its professional credibity where such conduct denotes wrongful intent or gross negligence, including, in particular, any of the following:		
(i) fraudulently or negligently misrepresenting information required for the verification of the absence of grounds for exclusion or the fulfilment of selection criteria or in the performance of a contract;		
(ii) entering into agreement with other persons with the aim of distorting competition;		
(iii) violating intellectual property rights;		
(iv) attempting to influence the decision-making process of the contracting authority during the award procedure;		
(v) attempting to obtain confidential information that may confer upon it undue advantages in the award procedure;		

(d) it has been established by a final judgement that the person is guilty of the following:	
(i) fraud, within the meaning of Article 1 of the Convention on the protection of the European Communities' financial interests, drawn up by the Council Act of 26 July 1995;	
(ii) corruption, as defined in Article 3 of the Convention on the fight against corruption involving officials of the European Communities or officials of EU Member States, drawn up by the Council Act of 26 May 1997, and in Article 2(1) of Council Framework Decision 2003/568/JHA, as well as corruption as defined in the legal provisions of the country where the contracting authority is located, the country in which the person is established or the country of the performance of the contract;	
(iii) participation in a criminal organisation, as defined in Article 2 of Council Framework Decision 2008/841/JHA;	
(iv) money laundering or terrorist financing, as defined in Article 1 of Directive 2005/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council;	
(v) terrorist-related offences or offences linked to terrorist activities, as defined in Articles 1 and 3 of Council Framework Decision 2002/475/JHA, respectively, or inciting, aiding, abetting or attempting to commit such offences, as referred to in Article 4 of that Decision;	
(vi) child labour or other forms of trafficking in human beings as defined in Article 2 of Directive 2011/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council;	
(e) the person has shown significant deficiencies in complying with the main obligations in the performance of a contract financed by the Union's budget, which has led to its early termination or to the application of liquidated damages or other contractual penalties, or which has been discovered following checks, audits or investigations by an Authorising Officer, OLAF or the Court of Auditors;	
(f) it has been established by a final judgment or final administrative decision that the person has committed an irregularity within the meaning of Article 1(2) of Council Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 2988/95;	
(g) for the situations of grave professional misconduct, fraud, corruption, other criminal offences, significant deficiencies in the performance of the contract or irregularity, the applicant is subject to:	
i.facts established in the context of audits or investigations carried out by the Court of Auditors, OLAF or internal audit, or any other check, audit or control performed under the responsibility of an authorising officer of an EU institution, of a European office or of an EU agency or body;	
ii.non-final administrative decisions which may include disciplinary measures taken by the competent supervisory body responsible for the verification of the application of standards of professional ethics;	
iii.decisions of the ECB, the EIB, the European Investment Fund or	

international organisations;	
iv.decisions of the Commission relating to the infringement of the Union's competition rules or of a national competent authority relating to the infringement of Union or national competition law; or	
v.decisions of exclusion by an authorising officer of an EU institution, of a European office or of an EU agency or body.	

II – SITUATIONS OF EXCLUSION CONCERNING NATURAL PERSONS WITH POWER OF REPRESENTATION, DECISION-MAKING OR CONTROL OVER THE LEGAL PERSON

Not applicable to natural persons, Member States and local authorities

(2)declares that a natural person who is a member of the administrative, management or supervisory body of the above- mentioned legal person, or who has powers of representation, decision or control with regard to the above-mentioned legal person (this covers company directors, members of management or supervisory bodies, and cases where one natural person holds a majority of shares) is in one of the following situations:	YES	NO	N/A
Situation (c) above (grave professional misconduct)			
Situation (d) above (fraud, corruption or other criminal offence)			
Situation (e) above (significant deficiencies in performance of a contract)			
Situation (f) above (irregularity)			

III – SITUATIONS OF EXCLUSION CONCERNING NATURAL OR LEGAL PERSONS ASSUMING UNLIMITED LIABILITY FOR THE DEBTS OF THE LEGAL PERSON

(3) declares that a natural or legal person that assumes unlimited liability for the debts of the above-mentioned legal person is in one of the following situations:			N/A
Situation (a) above (bankruptcy)			
Situation (b) above (breach in payment of taxes or social security contributions)			

IV – GROUNDS FOR REJECTION FROM THIS PROCEDURE

(4) declares that the above-mentioned person:	YES	NO
(h) has distorted competition by being previously involved in the preparation of procurement documents for this procurement procedure.		

V – REMEDIAL MEASURES

If the person declares one of the situations of exclusion listed above, it must indicate measures it has taken to remedy the exclusion situation, thus demonstrating its reliability. This may include e.g. technical, organisational and personnel measures to prevent further occurrence, compensation of damage or payment of fines. The relevant documentary evidence which illustrates the remedial measures taken must be provided in annex to this declaration. This does not apply for situations referred in point (d) of this declaration.

VI – EVIDENCE UPON REQUEST

Upon request and within the time limit set by the contracting authority the person must provide information on the persons that are members of the administrative, management or supervisory body. It must also provide the following evidence concerning the person itself and concerning the natural or legal persons which assume unlimited liability for the debt of the person:

For situations described in (a), (c), (d) or (f), production of a recent extract from the judicial record is required or, failing that, an equivalent document recently issued by a judicial or administrative authority in the country of establishment of the person showing that those requirements are satisfied.

For the situation described in point (a) or (b), production of recent certificates issued by the competent authorities of the State concerned are required. These documents must provide evidence covering all taxes and social security contributions for which the person is liable, including for example, VAT, income tax (natural persons only), company tax (legal persons only) and social security contributions. Where any document described above is not issued in the country concerned, it may be replaced by a sworn statement made before a judicial authority or notary or, failing that, a solemn statement made before an administrative authority or a qualified professional body in its country of establishment.

The person is not required to submit the evidence if it has already been submitted for another procurement procedure. The documents must have been issued no more than one year before the date of their request by the contracting authority and must still be valid at that date.

The signatory declares that the person has already provided the documentary evidence for a previous procedure and confirms that there has been no change in its situation:

Document	Full reference to previous procedure
Insert as many lines as necessary.	

VII – SELECTION CRITERIA

(5)declares that the above-mentioned person complies with the	VES		Ν/Δ	
selection criteria applicable to it individually as provided in the	TLO	NO		

tender specifications:		
(a) It has the legal and regulatory capacity to pursue the professional activity needed for performing the contract as required in section 8.2.1. of the tender specifications;		
(b) It fulfills the applicable economic and financial criteria indicated in section 8.2.2. of the tender specifications;		
(c) It fulfills the applicable technical and professional criteria indicated in section 8.2.3. of the tender specifications.		

(6) if the above-mentioned person is the sole tenderer or the leader in case of joint tender, declares that:		NO	N/A
(d) the tenderer, including all members of the group in case of joint tender complies with all the selection criteria for which a consolidated asseessment will be made as provided in the tender specifications.			

VII – EVIDENCE FOR SELECTION

The signatory declares that the above-mentioned person is able to provide the necessary supporting documents listed in the relevant sections of the tender specifications and which are not available electronically upon request and without delay.

The person is not required to submit the evidence if it has already been submitted for another procurement procedure. The documents must have been issued no more than one year before the date of their request by the contracting authority and must still be valid at that date.

The signatory declares that the person has already provided the documentary evidence for a previous procedure and confirms that there has been no change in its situation:

Document	Full reference to previous procedure
Insert as many lines as necessary.	

The above-mentioned person may be subject to rejection from this procedure and to administrative sanctions (exclusion or financial penalty) if any of the declarations or information provided as a condition for participating in this procedure prove to be false.

Full name

Date

Signature



PLEASE COMPLETE AND SIGN THIS FORM AND ATTACH COPIES OF OFFICIAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS (REGISTER(S) OF COMPANIES, OFFICIAL GAZETTE, VAT REGISTRATION, ETC.)

LEGAL ENTITY

PRIVACY STATEMENT

 IENT
 http://ec.europa.eu/budget/contracts
 grants/info
 contracts/legal
 entities
 en.cfm#en

Please use CAPITAL LETTERS and LATIN CHARACTERS when filling in the form.

PRIVATE/PUBLIC LAW BODY WITH LEGAL FORM

OFFICIAL NAME ①				
(if different) ABBREVIATION				
LEGAL FORM				
ORGANISATION TYPE	FOR PROFIT			
	NON FOR PROFIT	NGO ② YES	S NO	
MAIN REGISTRATION	NUMBER ③			
SECONDARY REGISTRA (if applicable)	ATION NUMBER			
PLACE OF MAIN	СІТҮ			
REGISTRATION	COUNTRY			
DATE OF MAIN REGIST		1000/		
VAT NUMBER	DD MM	үүүү		
ADDRESS OF				
HEAD OFFICE				
POSTCODE	P.O. BOX		СІТҮ	
COUNTRY			PHONE	
E-MAIL				
DATE		STAN	10	

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE



⁽¹⁾ National denomination and its translation in EN or FR if existing.

⁽²⁾ NGO = Non Governmental Organisation, to be completed if NFPO is indicated.

³ Registration number in the national register of companies. See table with corresponding field denomination by country.



FINANCIAL IDENTIFICATION

PRIVACY STATEMENT

http://ec.europa.eu/budget/contracts grants/info contracts/financial id/financial id en.cfm#en

Please use CAPITAL LETTERS and LATIN CHARACTERS when filling in the form.

	BANKING DETAILS ①
ACCOUNT NAME ②	
IBAN/ACCOUNT NUME	BER ③
CURRENCY	
BIC/SWIFT CODE	BRANCH CODE ④
BANK NAME	
	ADDRESS OF BANK BRANCH
STREET & NUMBER	
TOWN/CITY	POSTCODE
COUNTRY	
	ACCOUNT HOLDER'S DATA
	AS DECLARED TO THE BANK
ACCOUNT HOLDER	
STREET & NUMBER	
TOWN/CITY	POSTCODE
COUNTRY	
REMARK	
BANK STAMP + SIGNA	FURE OF BANK REPRESENTATIVE ③ DATE (Obligatory)
	SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNT HOLDER (Obligatory)

1 Enter the final bank data and not the data of the intermediary bank.

(2) This does not refer to the type of account. The account name is usually the one of the account holder. However, the account holder may have chosen to give a different name to its bank account.

- ③ Fill in the IBAN Code (International Bank Account Number) if it exists in the country where your bank is established
- ④ Only applicable for US (ABA code), for AU/NZ (BSB code) and for CA (Transit code). Does not apply for other countries.

(5) It is preferable to attach a copy of RECENT bank statement. Please note that the bank statement has to confirm all the information listed above under 'ACCOUNT NAME', 'ACCOUNT NUMBER/IBAN' and 'BANK NAME'. With an attached statement, the stamp of the bank and the signature of the bank's representative are not required. The signature of the account-holder and the date are ALWAYS mandatory.





Call for Tender ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19

Annex - Financial Offer

The price charged by the tenderer for the services listed must be expressed as a fixed figure in Euro. The cost should be given to two decimal places i.e. €10.50.

Prices should be provided for those travel relations (pairs – example Belgrade – Sarajevo) which are feasible to be provided by the bidder offer and which are included in the bidders field of operations, and covered geographical area of offered service oprations.

A separate Annex for the financial offer is part of the tender dossier and tenderer is invited to propose several types of prices, as following:

Name of the Tenderer

Signed (authorised signature) on behalf of the Tenderer

Name of the representative

Position

Signature

Date

Departure	Destinations	Roundtrip price EUR	Roundtrip Price for two-day event EUR (includes one overnight of driver and vehicle at event location)
Belgrade	Sarajevo		
	Skopje		
	Pristina		
	Banja Luka		
	Ljubljana		
	Bucharest		
	Plitvice		

Departure	Destinations	Roundtrip price EUR	Roundtrip Price for two-day event EUR (includes one overnight of driver and vehicle at event location)
Questions	Tirana		
	Ohrid		
	Pristina		
	Banja Luka		
Sarajevo	Danilovgrad		
	Plitvice		
	Budva		
	Mostar		
	Belgrade		
	Sarajevo		
	Tirana		
Skopje	Ohrid		
	Pristina		
	Danilovgrad		
	Budva		
	Sarajevo		
	Skopje		
	Ohrid		
Tirana	Pristina		
	Danilovgrad		
	Budva		
	Skopje		
	Podgorica		
Ohrid	Tirana		
	Pristina		
	Sarajevo		
	Skopje		
	Ohrid		
Pristina	Tirana		
	Danilovgrad		
	Budva		
	Sarajevo		
	Belgrade		
Banja Luka	Danilovgrad		
	Zagreb		
	Sarajevo		
Podgorica	Skopje		
	Ohrid		
	Tirana		

4

Departure	Destinations	Roundtrip price EUR	Roundtrip Price for two-day event EUR (includes one overnight of driver and vehicle at event location)
	Pristina		
	Budva		
	Kolasin		
Mostar	Sarajevo		
	Belgrade		
	Danilovgrad		
	Zagreb		

Please also provide individual prices for departures and destinations in regards to the type of vehicle used for land transfer (car or van).

Departure	Destinations	Price per car, per direction (up to 3 pax) - EUR	Price per van, per direction (up to 7 pax) - EUR
Belgrade	Sarajevo		
	Skopje		
	Pristina		
	Banja Luka		
	Ljubljana		
	Bucharest		
	Plitvice		
	Tirana		
	Ohrid		
	Pristina		
Sarajovo	Banja Luka		
Sarajevo	Danilovgrad		
	Plitvice		
	Budva		
	Mostar		
Skopje	Belgrade		
	Sarajevo		
	Tirana		
	Ohrid		
	Pristina		
	Danilovgrad		
	Budva		

5
Departure	Destinations	Price per car, per direction (up to 3 pax) - EUR	Price per van, per direction (up to 7 pax) - EUR
_ .	Sarajevo		
	Skopje		
	Ohrid		
Tirana	Pristina		
	Danilovgrad		
	Budva		
	Skopje		
Obrid	Podgorica		
Ohrid	Tirana		
	Pristina		
	Sarajevo		
	Skopje		
Drietine	Ohrid		
Pristina	Tirana		
	Danilovgrad		
	Budva		
	Sarajevo		
Donio Luko	Belgrade		
Banja Luka	Danilovgrad		
	Zagreb		
	Sarajevo		
	Skopje		
	Ohrid		
Podgorica	Tirana		
	Pristina		
	Budva		
	Kolasin		
	Sarajevo		
Mostar	Belgrade		
Mostar	Danilovgrad		
	Zagreb		

General comments on the financial offer:

- All prices must be quoted in Euro.
- The assumptions stated below the table must be included on the tenderer's Financial Offer which must be undersigned for acceptance.
- The overall price of the contractor will be all inclusive price
- Prices must be quoted free of all duties, taxes and other charges (including VAT) as the ReSPA is exempt from such charges.

Call for tenders – ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19

• No further costs will be reimbursed by ReSPA.

Assumptions:

The financial offer includes all-inclusive costs and fees necessary for successful implementation of all of the activities and finalisation of high quality requested deliverables, related administrative tasks and costs, overheads (such as telecommunications & postage, IT, stationery, bank charges, taxes, social security etc.).



ReSPA Activities are Financed by the EU



Call for tenders – ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19

Annex 6 Technical Offer

I, the undersigned, being the authorised signatory (including all consortium members, in case of a consortium) confirm that the present tender meets the following technical requirements stipulated in Technical Specification.

- a) The Tenderer shall enclose with the Technical Offer all documents and information that will enable its offer to be assessed in terms of quality and of compliance with the Technical Specification.
- b) The Technical Offer shall include as a minimum the following information and must be undersigned for acceptance:
 - i. A brief description of the Tenderer's company and the types of services that the company offers.
 - ii. A description of the methodology in providing land travel serices.
 - iii. A description of the team proposed by the tenderer to manage and oversee the tender, including the roles of the contact person and the quality manager, and any other persons who will ensure the provision of the highest possible quality of service for this tender. In addition to indicate the name and contact details of the person responsible for this contract tender.
- c) The Tenderer is also required to include an electronic copy of its 'Technical Offer'.



ReSPA Activities are Financed by the EU



Call for tenders – ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19

The following aspects will be considered in the evaluation of the technical offers against the award criterion on quality of services and support:

No.	Qualitative Award Criteria			
i)	Quality and appropriateness of technical offer	Quality of the offer an accuracy of the description to provide the requested services, quality of service, provided vehicles and drivers	30	
ii)	Prior experience in the services requested; internal organisation of the tenderer	Team size and composition and balance of skill mix of the proposed team: profiles, team roles and responsibilities of all team members, including resource back-up.	20	
iii)	Conformance with services requested	Conformance of the offered services with the requirements – ordering process, invoicing process, communication with RESPA travellers, the flexibility of working hours and ad hock orders	20	
iv)	More than 5 references from international organizations, EU, OECD, UN, Embassies, recognized companies etc.	Evaluation will be made based on the level of recognition of organisations/insitutions of provided references, while the amount of provided references above the minimum 5, will be considered as secondary criteria.	30	
	TOTAL			

Date:

Signature of authorised representative:

(Print name):

Position in company:

Representing (name of tenderer):

PROPOSAL FOR participants

NAME OF THE AGENCY:	
Name of ReSPA Activity:	
Event starts:	
Visit ends:	
Arrival date:	
Annval uale.	
Departure date:	
OTHER REQUIREMENTS:	

COMMENTS	TRANSFER DESTINATION		PRICE for a taxi (3 seats)	Pri mi
	TOTAL			
Ammount to be approved under this procurement request for purchase of flight tickets amopunts at		€ -		

Date:_____2019. PO No 1 Submited By:______PO approved by PM:_____

ice for inivan			
		€	-



ReSPA Activities are Financed by the EU



ANNEX 8 to the tender specifications DRAFT FRAMEWORK SERVICE CONTRACT ReSPA/EC/SER/xxx

The Regional School of Public Administration (hereinafter referred to as "the Contracting Authority"), represented for the purposes of signature of this framework contract by Ms Ratka Sekulovic, Director of ReSPA,

of the one part,

and

[Official name in full] [Official legal form] Statutory registration number: [Complete] [Official address in full] VAT registration number: [Complete]

hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor", represented for the purposes of signature of this framework contract by [Complete name in full and function], on the other part,

HAVE AGREED

To the **Special Conditions** and the **General Conditions** below and the following annexes:

Annex I – Tender specifications ReSPA/EC/SER/002-19

Annex II – Contractor's tender [REFERENCE and DATE]

Annex III – Model for order forms

The terms set out in the Special Conditions shall take precedence over those in the other parts of the Contract.

The terms set out in the General Conditions shall take precedence over those in the Annexes.

The terms set out in the Tender specifications (Annex I) shall take precedence over those in the order form (Annex III), the latter taking precedence over the Contractor's tender (Annex II).

All documents issued by the Contractor (end-agreements, general terms and conditions, etc.) except its tender (Annex II) are held inapplicable, unless explicitly specified in the Special Conditions of this Contract. In all circumstances, in the event of contradiction between the provisions in this Contract and documents issued by the Contractor, this Contract shall prevails, regardless of any provision to the contrary in the Contractor's documents.

Subject to the above, the several instruments forming part of the Contract are to be taken as mutually explanatory. Ambiguities or discrepancies within or between such parts shall be explained or rectified by a written instruction issued by the Contracting Authority, subject to the rights of the Contractor under Article I.8 should he dispute any such instruction.

Furthermore, each provision in the Special Conditions and General Conditions is severable and distinct from the others. If a provision is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable to any extent, it must be severed from the remainder provisions of the Contract. This does not affect the legality, validity or enforceability of any other provisions of the Contract, which continue in full force and effect. The illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision must be replaced by a legal, valid and enforceable substitute provision which corresponds as closely as possible with the actual intent of the parties under the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision. The replacement of such provision must be made in accordance with Article II.19. The Contract must be interpreted as if it had contained the substitute provision as from its entry into force.

I – SPECIAL CONDITIONS ARTICLE

I.1 – SUBJECT

I.1.1 The subject of the Contract is provision of land travel services for the Regional School of Public Administration (ReSPA) within its premises.

I.1.2 Signature of the Contract imposes no obligation on the Contracting Authority to purchase. Only implementation of the Contract through order forms is binding on the Contracting Authority.

I.1.3 Once implementation of the Contract has been asked or has commenced, the Contractor shall reply and provide the services in accordance with all the terms and conditions of the Contract and the relevant order form.

I.1.4 The Contract does not confer on the Contractor any exclusive right to provide the services described in the Tender Specifications (Annex I) to the Contracting Authority.

ARTICLE I.2 – ENTRY INTO FORCE AND DURATION

I.2.1 The Contract shall enter into force on the date on which it is signed by the Contracting Authority.

I.2.2 Under no circumstances may implementation of the Contract commence before the date on which it enters into force. Similarly, provision of services may under no circumstances begin before the date on which the relevant order form enters into force.

I.2.3 The Contract is concluded for an initial period of 24 (twenty-four) months with effect from the date on which it enters into force as specified in Article I.2.1.

I.2.4 The parties must sign any order form before the Contract expires. The contract shall continue to apply to such order forms after its expiry. The services relating to such order forms must be performed no later than 6 (six) months after the expiry of the Contract.

ARTICLE I.3 – PRICES

I.3.1 The maximum budget available for the Contract is drawn up in accordance with stated activities/per participants' travel. However, this binds in no way the Contracting Authority to purchase for the maximum budget.

I.3.2 The prices of the services shall be as listed in the Contractor's tender (Annex II).

I.3.3 Prices shall be fixed and not subject to revision for the first year of performance of the Contract.

ARTICLE I.4 – IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CONTRACT

I.4.1 All services under this Contract will be the subject of a written order form. The order form will specify the terms of the performance including in particular the period for the provision of the services, the type of services and the amount.

I.4.2 Within the invoicing period stipulated in the Annex 1 - Technical Specification, after the receipt of the purchase order and delivery of ordered services, the Contractor shall enclose the purchase order along with the invoice to the Contracting Authority.

I.4.3 The period for the provision of the services shall start to run from the date on which the order form is signed by both contracting parties, unless indicated otherwise in the order form.

ARTICLE I.5 – INVOICING AND PAYMENT

I.5.1 Payments under the Contract shall be made only if the Contractor has fulfilled all its contractual and legal obligations by the date on which the invoice is correctly submitted.

I.5.2 No later than 15 (fifteen) calendar days after the end of a month in which the requested services have been provided, the Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Authority, an invoice for the preceding month indicating the reference number of the Contract and of the order form to which it refers, accompanied by the relevant supporting documents relating to the services carried out.

1.5.2 Payments shall be made within 30 (thirty) calendar days form the date of receipt and approval of the relevant invoice and supporting documents.

ARTICLE I.6 – BANK ACCOUNT

Payments shall be made to the Contractor's bank account denominated in euro, identified as follows:

Bank name: [complete] Branch address: [complete] Account holder: [complete] IBAN code: [complete] BIC/Swift Code: [complete]

ARTICLE I.7 – GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

I.7.1 Any communication relating to the Contract or its implementation shall be made in writing, in paper or electronic format in the language of the Contract and shall bear the Contract and relevant order form references.

I.7.2 Electronic communication must be confirmed by paper communication when requested by either party.

I.7.3 Any communication is deemed to have been made when the receiving party receives it, unless this Contract refers to the date when the communication was sent. Electronic communication is deemed to have been received by the receiving party on the date of dispatch of that communication, provided that it is sent to the e-mail address indicated in Article I.7.4 below. The sending party must be able to prove the date of dispatch. In the event that the sending party receives a non-delivery report, it must take every effort to ensure that the other party actually receives the communication by electronic or normal mail. In such a case, the sending party is not held in breach of its obligation to send such communication within a specified deadline. Ordinary mail shall be deemed to have been received by the Contracting Authority on the date on which it is registered by the department responsible indicated in Article I.7.4. Formal notifications are considered to have been received by the receiving party on the date of receipt indicated in the proof received by the sending party that the communication was delivered to the specified recipient.

I.7.4 Communications shall be sent to the following addresses:

For the Contracting Authority:

Regional School of Public Administration Att.: Mr Vlatko Naumovski, Operations and Finance Manager – Coordinator Branelovica, 81410 Danilovgrad, Montenegro Tel.: +382 67 179 330 E-mail: v.naumovski@respaweb.eu For the Contractor:

[Complete Contractor's name in full] Att.: [Title] [Name in full] [Complete address in full] Tel.: [Complete] E-mail: [Complete]

By derogation from this Article, different contact details for the Contracting Authority or the Contractor may be provided in order forms.

I.7.5 During the performance of the Contract and at the request of the Contracting Authority, the use of electronic means to exchange ordering and invoicing documents may become mandatory.

ARTICLE I.8 – APPLICABLE LAW AND SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

I.8.1

Option 1.

- a) Given the status of ReSPA as an international organisation, the Party specifically agrees that the rights and obligations shall be governed exclusively by the terms and conditions of the present Contract.
- b) Any dispute arising out of the interpretation or implementation of this Contract, which cannot be settled by mutual agreement, shall be referred for decision to an arbitrator chosen by agreement between the parties or, failing such agreement on the choice of the arbitrator within three months of the request for arbitration, to an arbitrator (ReSPA Appeal Board) appointed by the ReSPA Governing Board at the request of either Party. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and not subject to appeal. The arbitration shall be conducted in English and shall take place in Danilovgrad, Montenegro.

GENERAL CONDITIONS

ARTICLE II.1 – PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACT

II.1.1 The Contractor shall provide services of high quality standards, in accordance with the state of the art in the industry and the provisions of this Contract, in particular in the tender specifications (Annex I) and the terms of its tenders (Annex II).

II.1.2 The Contractor must comply with the minimum requirements provided for in the tender specifications (Annex I). This includes compliance with applicable obligations under environmental, social and labour law established by national law and collective agreements or by the international environmental, social and labour law provisions listed in Annex X to Directive 2014/14/EU¹.

¹ OJ EU L 94/65 of 28.3.2014.

II.1.3 The Contractor shall have sole responsibility for taking the necessary steps to obtain any permit or license required for the performance of the Contract under the laws and regulations in force at the place where the tasks assigned to him are to be executed.

II.1.4 Without prejudice to Article II.3 any reference made to the Contractor's personnel in the Contract shall relate exclusively to individuals involved in the performance of the Contract.

II.1.5 The Contractor shall neither represent the Contracting Authority nor behave in any way that would give such an impression.

II.1.6 The Contractor is responsible for the personnel who carry out the services and exercises its authority over its personnel without any interference by the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must inform its personnel that their participation in providing the services does not result in any employment or contractual relationship with the Contracting Authority.

II.1.7 The Contractor must ensure that the personnel performing the Contract and any future replacement personnel possess the professional qualifications and experience required to provide the services, as the case may be on the basis of the selection criteria set out in the tender specifications (Annex I).

II.1.8 At the Contracting Authority's reasoned request, the Contractor shall replace any member of personnel who (i) does not have the expertise required to provide the services or (ii) has caused disruption at the premises of the Contracting Authority. The Contractor bears the cost of replacing its personnel and is responsible for any delay in providing the services resulting from the replacement of personnel.

II.1.9 Should any unforeseen event, action or omission directly or indirectly hamper provision of the services, either partially of totally, the Contractor shall immediately and on its own initiative record it and report it to the Contracting Authority. The report shall include a description of the problem and an indication of the date on which it started and of the remedial action taken by the Contractor to ensure full compliance with its obligations under the Contract.

II.1.10 Should the Contractor fail to perform its obligations under the Contract, the Contracting Authority may – without prejudice to its right to terminate the Contract or an order form – reduce or recover payments in proportion to the scale of the failure. In addition, the Contracting Authority may impose penalties or liquidated damages provided for in Article II.13.

II.1.11 The Contractor is responsible for liabilities; taxes, insurances and medical coverage for its employees, in accordance with all local laws and traditions. In additions all licenses, rules, regulations and registrations required by the local government are to be adhered to.

ARTICLE II.2 – LIABILITY

II.2.1 The Contracting Authority shall not be liable for any damage or loss caused or sustained by the Contractor, including any damage or loss caused by the Contractor to third parties, during or

as a consequence of performance of the Contract, except in the event of wilful misconduct or gross negligence on the part of the Contracting Authority.

II.2.2 The Contractor shall be liable for any loss or damage caused to or sustained by the Contracting Authority during or as a consequence of performance of the Contract, including in the event of subcontracting, but only up to 3 (three) times the total amount of the relevant order form. Nevertheless, if the damage or loss is caused by the gross negligence or wilful misconduct of the Contractor or by its personnel or subcontractors, the Contractor shall remain liable without any limitation as to the amount of the damage or loss.

II.2.3 In the event of any action brought by a third party against the Contracting Authority in connection with performance of the Contract, including any action for alleged breach of intellectual property rights, the Contractor shall assist the Contracting Authority in the legal proceedings, including by intervening in support of the Contracting Authority upon request. Expenditure incurred by the Contractor to this end may be borne by the Contracting Authority. If the Contracting Authority's liability towards the third party is established and that such liability is caused by the Contractor during or as a consequence of the performance of the Contract, the provisions of Article II.2.2 shall apply.

II.2.4 The Contractor shall take out insurance against risks and damages relating to performance of the Contract if required by the relevant applicable legislation. The Contractor shall take out supplementary insurance as reasonably required by standard practice in the industry. A copy of all the relevant insurance certificates shall be sent to the Contracting Authority should it so request.

II.2.5 Neither party shall be liable to the other party for loss or use of any results, loss for any indirect or consequential loss of damage, howsoever arising, which may be suffered by the other party in connection with the performance of the contract.

ARTICLE II.3 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND PROFESSIONAL CONFLICTING INTEREST

II.3.1 The Contractor shall take all necessary measures to prevent any situation of conflict of interest or professional conflicting interest. Such conflict of interest could arise in particular as a result of economic interest, political or national affinity, family or emotional ties, or any other relevant connection or shared interest. Professional conflicting interest is a situation in which the Contractor's previous or on-going professional activities affect its capacity to perform the Contract or an order form to an appropriate quality standard.

II.3.2 Any situation that could constitute a conflict of interest or professional conflicting interest during performance of the Contract must be notified to the Contracting Authority in writing without delay. In the event of such situation, the Contractor shall immediately take all necessary actions to resolve it. The Contracting Authority reserves the right to verify that such actions are appropriate and to require the Contractor to take further actions, if necessary, within a time limit which it shall set. The Contracting Authority also reserves the right not to award an order form to the contractor

II.3.3 The Contractor shall ensure that its personnel, board and directors are not placed in a situation which could give rise to conflicts of interest. Without prejudice to Article II.1, the Contractor shall replace, immediately and without compensation from the Contracting Authority, any member of its personnel exposed to such a situation. The Contractor shall pass on all the relevant obligations in writing to its personnel, board and directors as well as to third parties involved in the performance of the Contract. A copy of the instructions given and the undertakings made in this respect shall be sent to the Contracting Authority should it so request.

II.3.4 The Contractor shall abstain from any contact likely to compromise its independence.

II.3.5 The Contractors declares: (i) that he has not made and will not make any offer of any type whatsoever from which an advantage can be derived under the Contract, and (ii) that he has not granted and will not grant, has not sought and will not seek, has not attempted and will not attempt to obtain, and has not accepted and will not accept, any advantage, financial or in kind, to or from any party whatsoever, where such advantage constitutes an illegal practice or involves corruption, either directly or indirectly, inasmuch as it is an incentive or reward relating to performance of the Contract.

ARTICLE II.4 – CONFIDENTIALITY

II.4.1 The Contracting Authority and the Contractor must treat with confidentiality any information or documents, in any format, disclosed in writing or orally, relating to the performance of the Contract and identified in writing as confidential.

II.4.2 Each party must:

- (a) not use confidential information or documents for any purpose other than to perform its obligations under the Contract or an order form without the prior written agreement of the other party;
- (b) ensure the protection of such confidential information or documents with the same level of protection as its own confidential information or documents and in any case with due diligence;
- (c) not disclose, directly or indirectly, confidential information or documents to third parties without the prior written agreement of the other party.

II.4.3 The confidentiality obligations set out in this article are binding on the Contracting Authority and the Contractor during the performance of the Contract and for as long as the information or documents remain confidential unless:

- (a) the disclosing party agrees to release the receiving party from the confidentiality obligation earlier;
- (b) the confidential information or documents become public through other means than a breach of the confidentiality obligation;
- (c) the applicable law requires the disclosure of the confidential information or documents.

II.4.4 The Contractor must obtain from any natural person with the power to represent it or take decisions on its behalf, as well as from third parties involved in the performance of the Contract a commitment that they will comply with this article. At the request of the Contracting Authority, the Contractor must provide a document providing evidence of this commitment.

II.5 – PROCESSING OF PERSONAL DATA

II.5.1 Any personal data included in the Contract or related to its performance shall be processed pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 45/2001 on the protection of individuals with regard to the processing of personal data by the Community institutions and bodies and on the free movement of such data². Such data shall be processed within the Contracting Authority by the entity acting as data controller solely for the purposes of the performance, management and monitoring of the Contract without prejudice to possible transmission to the bodies charged with a monitoring or inspection task in conformity with Union law.

II.5.2 The Contractor shall have the right of access to its personal data and the right to rectify any such data that is inaccurate or incomplete. Should the Contractor have any queries concerning the processing of its personal data, he shall address them to the entity acting as data controller within the Contracting Authority.

II.5.3 Where the Contract requires the processing of personal data, the Contractor may act only under the supervision of the entity acting as data controller within the Contracting Authority, in particular with regard to the purposes of the processing, the categories of data which may be processed, the recipients of the data, and the means by which the data subject may exercise his/her rights.

II.5.4 The data shall be confidential within the meaning of Regulation (EC) No 45/2001 on the protection of individuals with regard to the processing of personal data by the Community institutions and bodies and on the free movement of such data. The Contractor must grant personnel access to the data to the extent strictly necessary for the performance, management and monitoring of the Contract.

II.5.5 The Contractor undertakes to adopt appropriate technical and organisational security measures having regard to the risks inherent in the processing and to the nature of the personal data concerned, in order to:

- (a) prevent any unauthorised person from having access to computer systems processing personal data, and especially: (i) unauthorised reading, copying, alteration or removal of storage media; (ii) unauthorised data input as well as any unauthorised disclosure, alteration or erasure of stored personal data; (iii) unauthorised use of data processing systems by means of data transmission facilities;
- (b) ensure that authorised users of a data-processing system can access only the personal data to which their access right refers;

² OJEU L 8/1 of 12.1.2001

- (c) record which personal data have been communicated, when and to whom;
- (d) ensure that personal data being processed on behalf of third parties can be processed only in the manner prescribed by the Contracting Authority;
- (e) ensure that, during communication of personal data and transport of storage media, the data cannot be read, copied or erased without authorisation;
- (f) design its organisational structure in such a way that it meets data protection requirements.

II.6 – USE, DISTRIBUTION AND PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ABOUT THE CONTRACT

II.6.1 The Contractor shall authorise the Contracting Authority to process, use, distribute and publish, for whatever purpose, by whatever means and on whatever medium, any data contained in or relating to the Contract, in particular the identity of the Contractor, the subject matter, the duration, the amount paid and the reports. Where personal data is concerned, Article II.5 shall apply.

II.6.2 Any distribution or publication of information relating to the Contract by the Contractor shall require prior written authorisation from the Contracting Authority. It shall state that the opinions expressed are those of the Contractor only and do not represent the Contracting Authority's official position.

II.6.3 The use of information obtained by the Contractor in the course of the Contract for purposes other than its performance shall be forbidden, unless the Contracting Authority has specifically given prior written authorisation to the contrary.

II.7 – OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

II.7.1. Any database rights, copyright, trademarks, trade names, domain names, designs or patents (whether registered or unregistered or capable of registration) including but not limited to, all other intellectual or industrial property rights such as know-how, trade secrets and goodwill (together, the "Intellectual Property Rights"), created by the Contractor, specifically for the Contracting Authority, or arising out of the performance of this Contract, shall be owned solely by the Contracting Authority, which may use, publish, assign or transfer them as it sees fit, without geographical or other limitation. Any intermediary sub-result, raw data, intermediary analysis made available by the Contractor, unless the Contract or Specific Contract explicitly provides for it to be treated as a self-contained result.

II.7.2. Where Intellectual Property Rights existed prior to the Contract being entered into and are utilised in the Goods or the provision of the Services in an incidental way, and which are necessary for the ongoing benefit of those Goods and Services, the Contractor shall, or shall procure that any third party owner of said Intellectual Property Rights shall, grant to the Contracting Authority

a perpetual, royalty free licence (which may be sub-licensed by the Contracting Authority) to use such pre-existing Intellectual Property Rights.

II.7.3. The Contractor shall execute any documents and do all things necessary to vest the Intellectual Property Rights, referred to in Article II.7.1 above, in the ownership of the Contracting Authority with full title guarantee and free from all third party rights as may be requested by the Contracting Authority from time to time and hereby assigns to the Contracting Authority, by way of present amendment of future rights, all such Intellectual Property Rights that may come into existence in the future.

II.7.4. The Contractor represents and warrants that the Intellectual Property Rights arising, or utilised, in accordance with Articles II.7.1-2 are or shall be original and will not infringe any Intellectual Property Rights owned by any third party (including, but without limitation to, all moral rights).

II.7.5. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Contracting Authority harmless from all claims and liabilities, costs, proceedings, damages and expenses (including legal and other professional fees and expenses) awarded against, suffered, incurred, or agreed to be paid by the Contracting Authority as a result of or in connection with any alleged or actual infringement, of any third party's Intellectual Property Rights or other rights arising out of the use or supply of Goods or the Services or either party's performance of this Article II.7.

II.7.6. When the Contractor retains pre-existing rights on parts of the intended outcome of the performance of the Contract which is delivered and finally accepted by the Contracting Authority ("the result"), reference shall be inserted to that effect when the result is used as set out in Article II.7.1 with the following disclaimer: © - year – ReSPA. All rights reserved. Certain parts are licensed under conditions to ReSPA.

II.8 – FORCE MAJEURE

II.8.1 Force majeure shall mean any unforeseen and exceptional situation or event beyond the control of the contracting parties which prevents either of them from performing any of their obligations under the Contract, was not due to error or negligence on their part or on the part of a subcontractor, and could not have been avoided by the exercise of due diligence. Defects in equipment or material or delays in making it available, labour disputes, strikes or financial problems cannot be invoked as force majeure unless they stem directly from a relevant case of force majeure.

II.8.2 Without prejudice to the provisions of Article II.1.9, if either contracting party is faced with force majeure, it shall notify the other party without delay in writing stating the nature of the circumstances, their likely duration and foreseen effects.

II.8.3 Neither contracting party shall be held liable for any delay or failure to perform its obligations under the Contract if that delay or failure is a result of force majeure. Where the Contractor is unable to perform its contractual obligations owning to force majeure, it shall have the right to remuneration only for tasks actually executed or services actually provided.

II.8.4 The contracting parties shall take all necessary measures to reduce any damage due to force majeure to a minimum.

II.9 – SUBCONTRACTING

II.9.1 Subcontract is not foreseen and the Contractor shall not subcontract and have the Contract implemented by third parties.

II.10 – ASSIGNMENT

II.10.1 The Contractor shall not assign in whole or in part any of the rights and obligations arising from the Contract, including claims for payments or factoring, without prior written authorisation from the Contracting Authority. In such cases, the Contractor must provide the Contracting Authority with the identity of the intended assignee.

II.10.2 In the absence of the authorisation referred to in Article II.10.1, or in the event of failure to observe the terms thereof, any right or obligation assigned by the Contractor shall not be enforceable against and shall have no effect on the Contracting Authority.

II.11 – SUSPENSION OF THE IMPLEMENTAION OF THE CONTRACT

II.11.1 Suspension by the Contractor

If the Contractor is affected by force majeure, it may suspend the provision of the services under an order form. The Contractor shall immediately notify the Contracting Authority in writing of the suspension, stating the nature of the circumstances of force majeure and when the Contractor expects to resume provision of the services. The Contractor shall notify in writing the Contracting Authority as soon as it is able to resume performance of an order form, unless the Contracting Authority has already terminated the Contract or the order form.

II.11.2 Suspension by the Contracting Authority

Without prejudice to the Contracting Authority's right to terminate the Contract, the Contracting Authority may suspend implementation of the Contract or performance of an order form or any part thereof, if the procedure for awarding the Contract or an order form, or the implementation of the Contract proves to have been subject to substantial errors, irregularities or fraud; or in order to verify whether the presumed substantial errors, irregularities or fraud actually occurred. The Contracting Authority shall notify the Contractor in writing of the suspension. Suspension shall take effect on the day the Contractor receives the notification or at a later date where the notification so provides. The Contracting Authority shall as soon as possible give written notice to the Contractor whether the suspension is lifted and provision of the services shall resume or inform that it intends to terminate the Contract or an order form pursuant to the provisions in Article II.12.1 point (f) or (j). The Contractor shall not be entitled to claim compensation on account of suspension of the Contract, of an order form or of part thereof.

II.12 – TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT

II.12.1 Grounds for termination by the Contracting Authority

The Contracting Authority may terminate the Contract or an order form in the following circumstances:

- (a) if provision of the services under a pending order form has not actually started within 15 (fifteen) calendar days of the scheduled date and the Contracting Authority considers the new date proposed, if any, unacceptable, taking into account the provisions in Article II.19.2;
- (b) if the Contractor is unable, through his own fault, to obtain any permit or licence required for performance of the Contract;
- (c) if the Contractor does not implement the Contract or perform the order form in accordance with the tender specifications (Annex I) or is in breach of another substantial contractual obligation or repeatedly refuses to sign order forms; termination of 3 (three) or more order forms in these circumstances also constitutes grounds for termination of the Contract;
- (d) if the Contractor or any person that assumes unlimited liability for the debts of the Contractor is in one of the situations provided for in points (a) and (b) of Article 106(1) of the financial rules applicable to the general budget of the European Union;
- (e) if the Contractor or any related person is subject to any of the situations provided for in points (c) to (f) of Article 106(1) or to Article 106(2) of the financial rules applicable to the general budget of the European Union;
- (f) if the procedure for awarding the Contract or the implementation of the Contract prove to have been subject of substantial errors, irregularities or fraud;
- (g) if the Contractor does not comply with applicable obligations under environmental, social and labour law established by national law, collective agreements or by the international environmental, social and labour law provisions;
- (h) if the Contractor is in a situation that could constitute a conflict of interest or a professional conflicting interest as referred to in Article II.3;
- (i) if a change to the Contractor's legal, financial, technical, organisational or ownership situation is likely to substantially affect the implementation of the Contract or substantially modify the conditions under which the Contract was initially awarded;
- (j) in the event of force majeure, where either resuming implementation is impossible or the necessary ensuing amendments to the Contract or an order form would mean that the tender specifications (Annex I) are no longer fulfilled or result in unequal treatment of tenderers or contractors;

- (k) if the needs of the Contracting Authority change and it no longer requires new services under the Contract; in such cases, on-going order forms remain unaffected;
- **II.12.2** Grounds for termination by the Contractor

The contractor may terminate the Contract or an order form in the following circumstances:

- (a) if it has evidence that the Contracting Authority has committed substantial errors, irregularities or fraud in the procedure for awarding the Contract or the implementation of the Contract;
- (b) if the Contracting Authority fails to comply with its obligations, in particular the obligation to provide information needed for the Contractor to implement the Contract or to perform an order form as provided in the tender specifications (Annex I);
- (c) in case of force majeure, notified in accordance with Article II.8, where performance thereof cannot be ensured for a period corresponding to at least one fifth of the period laid down in Article I.2.3.

II.12.3 Procedure for termination

A party shall formally notify the other party in writing of its intention to terminate the Contract or an order form stating the grounds for termination.

The other party shall have 30 (thirty) calendar days following the date of receipt of the notification to submit observations, including the measures it has taken to continue fulfilling its contractual obligations. Failing that, the decision to terminate becomes enforceable the day after the time limit for submitting observations has elapsed.

Within 15 (fifteen) calendar days of receipt of the observations, the party intending to terminate the Contract or an order form shall formally notify the other party either of the withdrawal of its intention to terminate or of its final decision to terminate.

In the cases referred to in points (a) to (d), (g) to (i), (k) and (l) of Article II.12.1 and in Article II.12.2, the date on which the termination takes effect must be specified in the formal notification.

In the cases referred to in points (e), (f) and (j) of Article II.12.1, the termination takes effect on the day following the date on which the contractor receives notification of the termination.

In addition, at the request of the Contracting Authority and regardless of the grounds for termination, the Contractor shall provide all necessary assistance, including information, documents and files, to allow the Contracting Authority to complete, continue or transfer the services to a new contractor or internally, without interruption or adverse effect on the quality or continuity of the services. The parties may agree to draw up a transition plan detailing the Contractor's assistance unless such a plan is already detailed in other contractual documents or in the tender specifications (Annex I). The Contractor shall provide such assistance at no additional cost, except if it can demonstrate that it requires substantial additional resources or

means, in which case it must provide an estimate of the costs involved and the parties will negotiate an arrangement in good faith.

II.12.4 Effects of termination

In the event of the Contracting Authority terminating the Contract or an order form in accordance with the provisions in Article II.12.1, and without prejudice to any other measures provided for in the Contract, the Contractor shall waive any claim for consequential damages, including any loss of anticipated profits for uncompleted services, unless the loss was caused by one of the situations specified in Article II.12.2.

On receipt of the letter terminating the Contract or a pending order form, the Contractor shall take all appropriate measures to minimise costs, prevent damage, and cancel or reduce its commitments. It shall draw up the documents required by the Special Conditions or the order form for the tasks already executed or the services already provided up to the date on which termination takes effect, and produce an invoice if necessary, within a period not exceeding 60 (sixty) calendar days from that date.

The Contractor is liable for any damage incurred by the Contracting Authority as a result of termination of the Contract or an order form in the cases referred to under points (a) to (i) of Article II.12.1, including the cost of appointing another contractor to provide or complete the services. The Contracting Authority may claim compensation for any such damage and recover any sums paid to the Contractor under the Contract.

II.13 – LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

II.13.1 Delay in delivery

If the Contractor fails to perform its contractual obligations within the applicable time limits set out in the Contract, including the tender specifications (Annex I), the Contracting Authority may claim liquidated damages for each and every calendar day of delay according to the formula $0.3 \times (V/d)$, where V is the price of the relevant purchase or deliverable or result, and d is the duration specified in the relevant order form for delivery of the relevant purchase or deliverable or result, or failing that, the period between the date specified in Article 1.4.2 and the date of delivery or performance specified in the relevant order form, expressed in calendar days.

Liquidated damages may be imposed together with a reduction in price under the conditions laid down in Article II.14.

II.13.2 Procedure

The Contracting Authority shall formally notify the Contractor of its intention to apply liquidated damages and the corresponding calculated amount.

The Contractor may submit observations against this decision within 30 (thirty) calendar days of receipt of the formal notification. In the absence of reaction on the part of the Contractor, the decision becomes enforceable the day after the time limit for submitting observations has elapsed.

If the Contractor submits observations, the Contracting Authority shall notify the contractor in writing within 15 (fifteen) calendar days of receipt of the observations of the withdrawal of its intention to apply liquidated damages, or of its final decision to apply liquidated damages and the corresponding amount.

II.13.3 Nature of the liquidated damages

The parties expressly acknowledge and agree that any amount payable under this Article is not a penalty and represents a reasonable estimate of fair compensation for the damage incurred due to failure to provide the services within the applicable time limits set out in the Contract, including the tender specifications (Annex I).

II.13.4 Claims and liability

Any claim for liquidated damages does not affect the Contractor's actual or potential liability or the Contracting Authority's rights under Article II.12.

II.14 – REDUCTION IN PRICE

II.14.1 Quality standards

If the Contractor fails to provide the service in accordance with the Contract or an order form ("unperformed obligations") or if it fails to provide the services in accordance with the expected quality levels specified in the tender specifications (Annex I) ("low quality delivery"), the Contracting Authority may reduce or recover payments proportionally to the seriousness of the unperformed obligations or low quality delivery. This includes in particular cases where the Contracting Authority cannot approve a result, report or deliverable as specified in Article II.15.5 after the Contractor has submitted the required additional information, correction or new version.

A reduction in price may be imposed together with liquidated damages under the conditions set in Article II.13.

II.14.2 Procedure

The Contracting Authority shall formally notify the Contractor in writing of its intention to reduce payment and the corresponding calculated amount.

The Contractor may submit observations against this decision within 30 (thirty) calendar days from receipt of the formal notification. In the absence of reaction on the part of the Contractor, the decision becomes enforceable the day after the time limit for submitting observations has elapsed.

If the Contractor submits observations, the Contracting Authority shall notify the contractor in writing within 15 (fifteen) calendar days of receipt of the observations of the withdrawal of its

intention to reduce payment, or of its final decision to reduce payment and the corresponding amount.

II.14.3 Claims and liability

Any reduction of price does not affect the Contractor's actual or potential liability or the Contracting Authority's rights under Article II.12.

II.15 – PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

II.15.1 Payments shall be deemed to have been made on the date when the Contracting Authority's account is debited.

II.15.2 Payments shall be made in EUR.

II.15.3 The Contracting Authority makes any conversion between the euro and another currency at the daily euro exchange rate published in the Official Journal of the European Union, or failing that, at the monthly accounting exchange rate, as established by the European Commission and published on its website, applicable on the day when it issues the payment order.

The Contractor makes any conversion between the euro and another currency at the monthly accounting exchange rate, established by the European Commission and published on its website, applicable on the date of the invoice.

II.15.4 The costs of transfer are borne as follows:

- The Contracting Authority bears the costs of dispatched charged by its bank;
- The Contractor bears the costs of receipt charged by its bank;
- The party causing repetition of transfer bears the costs for repeated transfer.

II.15.5 The Contracting Authority may suspend the payment period referred to in Article I.5 at any time by notifying the Contractor that its invoice cannot be processed either because it does not comply with the Contract, or because the contractor has not produced the appropriate documents or deliverables, or because the Contracting Authority has observations on the documents or deliverables submitted with the invoice.

The Contracting Authority shall notify the Contractor accordingly as soon as possible, stating the reason for suspension of the payment. Suspension shall take effect form the date of dispatch of the notification. The remaining payment period shall resume from the date on which the requested information or revised documents are received or the necessary further verifications, including on-the-spot checks, are carried out. Where the suspension period exceeds 2 (two) months, the Contractor may request the Contracting Authority to justify the continued suspension.

Where the payment periods have been suspended following rejection of a document referred to in the first paragraph of this article and the new document produced is also rejected, the Contracting Authority reserves the right to terminate the order form in accordance with Article II.12.1 (c).

II.15.6 On expiry of the payment period specified in Article I.5, and without prejudice to the provisions in Article II.15.5, the Contractor is entitled to claim interest on late payment at the rate applied by the European Central Bank for its refinancing operations in euros ("the reference rate") plus 8 (eight) points ("the margin"). The reference rate shall be the rate in force on the first day of the month in which the payment period ends, as published in the C series of the Official Journal of the European Union.

The suspension of the payment period in accordance with Article II.15.5 may not be considered as giving rise to late payment.

Interest on late payment shall cover the period running from the day following the due date for payment up to and including the date of the actual payment as defined in Article II.15.1. However, when the calculated interest is EUR 200 or less, it shall be paid to the Contractor only upon request within 2 (two) months of receiving late payment.

II.16 – RECOVERY

II.16.1 If an amount is to be recovered under the terms of the Contract, the Contractor shall repay the Contracting Authority the amount in question.

II.16.2 Before recovery, the Contracting Authority shall formally notify the Contractor of its intention to recover the amount it claims, specifying the amount due and the reasons for recovery and inviting the Contractor to make any observations within 30 (thirty) calendar days of receipt.

In the absence of reaction from the part of the Contractor or if, despite the observations submitted, the Contracting Authority decides to pursue the recovery procedure, it must confirm recovery by formally notifying a debit note to the Contractor, specifying the date of payment. The Contractor shall pay in accordance with the provisions specified in the debit note.

In the event of failure to pay by the due date specified in the debit note, the Contracting Authority may, after informing the Contractor in writing, recover the amounts due either by offsetting them against any amounts owed to the Contractor by the Contracting Authority, or by calling in a financial guarantee if the Contractor has provided one to the Contracting Authority, or by taking legal action.

II.16.3 If the Contractor does not honour the obligation to pay the amounts due by the date set by the Contracting Authority in the debit note, the amount due shall bear interest at the rate indicated in Article II.15.6. Interest shall be payable from the calendar day following the due date for payment up to the date when the Contracting Authority receives the full amount owed. Any partial payment is first entered against charges and interest on late payment and then against the principal amount.

II.17 – TAXATION

II.17.1 The Contractor shall have sole responsibility for compliance with the tax laws which apply to it. Failure to comply shall make the relevant invoices invalid.

II.17.2 The Contractor acknowledges that the Contracting Authority is, as a rule, exempt from all taxes and dues, including value added tax (VAT), pursuant to the provisions of the International Agreement on Establishment of the Regional School of Public Administration (ReSPA) and the Host Country Agreement between ReSPA and the Government of Montenegro. Therefore, ReSPA is not subject to any VAT in Montenegro.

The Contractor shall accordingly complete the necessary formalities with the relevant authorities to ensure that the goods and services required for the performance of the Contract are exempt from taxes and duties, including VAT.

II.17.3 Invoices presented by the Contractor shall contain the Contractor's identification data, the amount, the currency and the date, as well as the reference to the Contract and the order form. In addition, invoices presented by the Contractor shall indicate its place of taxation for VAT purposes and shall specify separately the amounts not including VAT and the amounts including VAT.

II.18 – CHECKS AND AUDITS

II.18.1 The Contracting Authority may check or require an audit on the performance of the Contract. This may be carried out by the Contracting Authority's staff or by any other outside body authorised to do so on their behalf. Such checks and audit may be initiated at any time during the performance of the Contract.

The audit procedure shall be deemed to be initiated on the date of receipt of the relevant letter sent by the Contracting Authority. Audits shall be carried out on a confidential basis.

II.18.2 The Contractor shall keep all original documents stored on any appropriate medium, including digitised originals when they are authorised by the national law and under the conditions laid down therein, for a period of 5 (five) years starting from the date of payment of the balance of the last order form issued under this Contract.

II.18.3 The Contractor shall allow the Contracting Authority's staff and outside personnel authorised by the Contracting Authority the appropriate right of access to sites and premises where the Contract is performed and to all the information, including information in electronic format, needed in order to conduct such checks and audits. The Contractor shall ensure that the information is readily available at the moment of the check or audit and, if so requested, that information be handed over in an appropriate format.

II.18.4 On the basis of the findings made during the audit, a provisional report shall be drawn up and communicated to the Contractor who shall have 30 (thirty) calendar days following the date of receipt to submit observations. The final report shall be sent to the Contractor within 60 (sixty) calendar days following expiry of that deadline. On the basis of the final audit findings, the Contracting Authority may recover all or part of the payments made in accordance with Article II.16 and may take any other measures which it considers necessary.

II.19 – AMENDMENTS

II.19.1 Any amendment to the Contract or an order form shall be the subject of a written agreement concluded between the contracting parties before fulfilment of all their contractual obligations. An oral amendment shall not be binding on the contracting parties. An order form may not be deemed to constitute an amendment to the Contract.

II.19.2 Any amendment may not have the purpose or the effect of making changes to the Contract or to order forms which might alter the initial conditions of the procurement procedure or result in unequal treatment of tenderers or contractors.

SIGNATURES

For [insert Contractor's official name], [Name of the legal representative] [Function]

Signature: _____

Done at [complete], on [date]

For the Regional School of Public Administration, Ms Ratka Sekulovic Director Signature:_____

Done at Danilovgrad, on [date]

LIST OF ENTITIES INVITED TO SUBMIT A TENDER

Provision of ReSPA Land Travel Services Danilovgrad, Montenegro

> Miross travel agency Marka Miljanova 1/1 81 000 Podgorica tel. ++382 20 231 383 e-mail: office@miross.me

2. Congress Travel Dzordza Vašingtona 45 81000 Podgorica tel. ++ 382 20 229-550

e-mail: office@congresstravel.me

Grand travel agency
 19 Decembar 5
 81000 Podgorica
 tel. ++382 20 664-666
 e-mail: grand@grand.me

4. Savana Tourist Enterprises Orce Nikolov 20,
1000 Skopje, Macedonia tel. ++ 389 2 3115 826, fax ++ 389 2 3114 206,
e-mail: info@savana.com.mk 5. BTA travel agency Takovska 6,
11000 Belgrade, Serbia tel: ++381113239418,
Fax: +381113239418,
e-mail: office@bta.co.rs

6. Primus agency Lokov 3-1/11
1000 Skopje, Macedonia tel: +38970216765
e-mail: info@primus.com.mk

7. Fly Fly Travel
Knez Mihajlova 4,
1100 Belgrade, Serbia
tel: ++381112185616
e-mail: upit@flyflytravel.com

Veneta travel agency
 Rr. Garibaldi 59,
 10 000 Prishtine
 Tel: ++37744141282
 e-mail: info@veneta-travel.com

 9. Centrotrans agency Kurta Schorka 14,
 Sarajevo 71 000, BiH Tel: ++38733770800
 e-mail: info@centrotrans.com 10. URBAN Agency Kralja Nikole 122 81000 Podgorica, Montenegro tel: ++38267949197 e-mail: taxi.mne@gmail.com

11. Euro Car Rentals 1000 Tirana, Albania tel:+355 67 600 5454 e-mail: <u>finance@eurocar.al</u> e-mail: <u>klajd.ferraj@eurocar.al</u>

12. SIRIUS TRAVEL d.o.o Obala Kulina Bana 5 71000 Sarajevo, BiH Tel: ++387 33 555 035 Fax: ++387 33 550 941 e-mail: siriustravel@bih.net.ba

13. Albani Express Komuna e Parisit , Sheshi "Gjeneral Jozef San Martini", Pall.3,Hy.18 ,Ap.10 1000 Tirana, Albania tel: ++355 4 45 27 394 e-mail: <u>info@albaniaexpresstravel.com</u>

> 14. KonTiki travel Beogradska 71 11000 Belgrade, Republic of Serbia Tel: ++381 11 20-98-000; Fax ++381 11 33-45-857 e-mail: info@kontiki.rs

> > 15. Gallileo Agency Dzordza Vasingtona 3/7,

8100 Podgorica, Montenegro Mob: ++382 68 029 178; ++382 67 282 343; +382 69 029 178, e-mail: <u>gallileo@t-com.me</u>

> 16. Fenix agecy
> Arsenija Boljevica 171,
> 81000 Podgorica, Montenegro tel: ++38269790586
> e-mail: boljevicn1@gmail.com

17. Europcar Aleksandar Palace Hotel, Boulevard 8 September 15 1000 Skopje, Macedonia Tel: ++389 (70) 205546 e-mail: <u>reservation@europcar.com.mk</u>